
WASHINGTON STATE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION PUBLIC 

MEETING - April 2019

Great Wolf Lodge
20500 Old Highway 99 SW

Centralia, WA 98531



  
STATE OF WASHINGTON  

GAMBLING COMMISSION  
                 “Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”   

         Great Wolf Lodge, 20500 Old Highway 99 SW Centralia, WA 98531  
                                April 11, 2019 

Please note, agenda times are estimates only.  Items may be taken out of sequence at the discretion of the Chair.  
Commissioners may take action on business items. 

Administrative Procedures Act Proceedings are identified by an asterisk (*)  
  

PUBLIC MEETING  
10:00 AM  Executive Session  -  Closed to the Public  

Discuss Pending Criminal Investigations, Tribal Negotiations, and 
Litigation  
The public meeting will reconvene at approximately 1:00 pm 

1:00 PM  
  
  
  
  

Tab 1  
  
  

Call to Order                                                                                                Bud Sizemore, Chair 
Welcome and Introductions   

• Moment of Silence 
Consent Agenda                                                                                                               (Action) 

• Minutes - March 14, 2019  
• New Licenses and Class III Employees*  

 
Class III Employees/Snoqualmie & Cowlitz Tribes*                                                   (Action) 
     
Director’s Written Report David Trujillo, Director 
 
National Indian Gaming Association and ICE Presentations      
                                                                                                          Chris Stearns, Commissioner 

Tab 2 Administrative Procedures Act  Refresher                                              
                                                                                   Suzanne Becker, Assistant Attorney General 
 

Tab 3 *Defaults  
• Kim Hue T. Mai, Public Card Room Employee Revocation CR 2017-01115      (Action) 
• David L. Terry, Public Card Room Employee Revocation, CR 2018-01926       (Action) 

  
                                                                          Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager 
 

Tab 4 2020 Supplemental Budget Request Presentation                                                                     
                                                                                 Christopher Stanley, Chief Financial Officer 
 

Tab 5 2019 Legislative Update 
 Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager 
                                                                                Christopher Stanley, Chief Financial Officer 

  Public Comment 
Meeting Adjourn  

Upon advance request, the Commission will pursue reasonable accommodations to enable persons with disabilities to attend 
Commission meetings. Questions or comments pertaining to the agenda and requests for special accommodations should be 
directed to Julie Anderson, Executive Assistant at (360) 486-3453 or TDD (360) 486-3637. Questions or comments pertaining to 
rule changes should be directed to the Rules Coordinator (360) 486-3473.  

Please silence your cell phones for the public meeting 



 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”  

1 
 

 
March Gambling Commission Meeting Minutes 

Hampton Inn & Suites 4301 Martin Way E. Olympia 
Public Meeting  
March 14, 2019 

 
Commissioners Present:                                      
Bud Sizemore, Chair 
Julia Patterson, Vice Chair  
Ed Troyer 
Alicia Levy 

Ex Officio Members Present:  
 

 
Staff Present: 
David Trujillo, Executive Director; Tina Griffin, Assistant Director; Christopher Stanley, Chief 
Financial Officer; Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager; Julie Lies, Tribal Liaison; 
Heather Songer, Public Information Officer; Cathy Harvey, Agent in Charge; Julie Anderson, 
Executive Assistant; and Suzanne Becker, Assistant Attorney General.  
 
Public Meeting Call to Order 
Chair Bud Sizemore called the Gambling Commission meeting to order at 10:15 a.m. He 
announced that the commissioners would be going into executive session and that the estimated 
time for the public meeting to start was 12:00 p.m. In executive session, the commissioners 
discussed litigation, pending criminal investigations and tribal negotiations.  
 
At 12:14 p.m., Chair Sizemore welcomed everyone to the Hampton Inn & Suites and 
introductions were made.  He announced that Commissioner Stearns would not be present for the 
meeting.  
 
Chair Sizemore asked for a moment of silence to recognize law enforcement officers across the 
country and in this state who were lost in the line of duty since we last met.  
 
There were 19 people in attendance.    
 
Tab 1 
Commissioner Levy moved to approve the consent agenda as presented by staff.  
Commissioner Patterson seconded the motion. 
The motion was passed 4:0 
Commissioner Stearns was not present for the vote. 
 
Director’s Report   

Director Trujillo reminded everyone that March is Problem Gambling Awareness Month. He 
also shared the Governor’s proclamation regarding Problem Gambling and highlighted a few 
events that occurred across the state. 



2 
 

 
Tab 2 
Petition Trade Show Rules  

Ashlie Laydon, Rules Coordinator, presented the materials for this tab. In January, 
commissioners voted to enter into rule-making to clarify requirements for trade shows, including 
transportation and storage of gambling equipment. Commissioners voted unanimously to initiate 
rule-making regarding trade shows. Staff has worked with stakeholders to draft rule language 
and at this time, recommends filing draft language for public review and comment. 
   
Commissioner Patterson asked for clarification on the difference of the WAC language verses 
the tribal compact language. Assistant Director Tina Griffin provided an explanation regarding 
the WAC and Tribal Liaison Julie Lies provided an explanation for the tribal language.  
 
Chair Sizemore called for public comment. 
 
Paul Dasaro, Executive Director of the Cowlitz Tribal Gaming Agency, stated that “One of the 
sections explicitly authorizes Class II gaming equipment, as authorized by federal law, then later 
in the new language, it specifically says that gambling equipment at a trade show is subject to 
on-site inspection by the State Gambling Commission. I just want to make an observation that 
Class II equipment is not subject to state regulation. So perhaps some consideration of that as 
this rule moves forward.” 
 
Director Trujillo said the definition of gambling equipment within the WAC doesn't include 
Class II and so, we would default to the definition of gambling equipment, and the Gambling 
Commission staff wouldn't be out inspecting Class II equipment. 
 
Commissioner Patterson moved to file the proposed rules as presented by staff.  
Commissioner Levy seconded the motion.  
The motion was passed 4:0 
Commissioner Stearns was not present for the vote. 
 
Tab 3 
Petition for Bingo Age Limits 
 
Ashlie Laydon, Rules Coordinator, presented the materials for this tab. Mr. Hartshorn would like 
to have WAC 230-06-010 rule changed to restrict minors from playing bingo at charitable or 
nonprofit organizations with a parent or guardian because he feels minors should not be 
participating in gambling activities. His petition would not make changes to bingo played at 
agricultural fairs or school carnivals. Mr. Hartshorn did not attend the meeting. Staff 
recommended that Commissioners vote to deny the petition that seeks to prohibit minors from 
participating in bingo at licensed bingo facilities.  
 
Commissioners Patterson stated that bingo is important to non-profits and noted that bingo in 
her opinion is different than gambling in a casino.  
 
Chair Sizemore called for public comment. 



3 
 

Ron Burback, a local business owner that operates the bingo games at the Washington State 
Fair, expressed concerns saying “my company operates the bingo at the fair, and I'm here to see 
that we hold our exemption, which we have on the children. I think there's a number of reasons 
why we should still keep an exemption if this goes through and you decide to limit the age on 
children. Number one, we are not a place where they come to play bingo; they come to see the 
fair, and they go to the bingo when they're worn out. They’ve got the kids, and they can't turn the 
kids loose so they bring the kids in, they sit down, they play a couple of games of bingo and 
everybody goes away and stays happy at the fair. Plus, we are not a money bingo, we're a 
merchandise bingo.” He continues to say “Now, I don't know if that makes much of a difference, 
it seemed to be that the money had something to do with what I was reading on the thing, but 
you will severely impact our bingo if you put a limit on the age of the children. When you impact 
that, you impact the FHA, the 4H, and other child-focused entities that indirectly profit from 
bingo traffic. So what I would like you to do is leave us where we're at. We don't have an age 
limit now, and I don't think you're really going to gain much by having us put one on, other than 
people won't be playing that much. Thank you.” 
 
There was no further public comment. 
 
Commissioner Levy moved to deny the petition as the industry does not support this change 
and the petitioner’s concerns can be addressed through investigation of complaints and 
enforcement of bingo operational rules and internal controls, where necessary.  
Commissioner Patterson seconded the motion.  
The motion was passed 4:0 
Commissioner Stearns was not present for the vote. 

Tab 4 
Defaults 
 
Legal and Legislative Manager, Brian Considine (LLM) presented the materials for this tab.  
JD Christian, Class III Employee Certification Revocation. Mr. Christian was responsible for 
unlocking and retrieving cash boxes containing money from player terminals, and handing them 
to another casino employee so they could be replaced with an empty cash box. Surveillance 
shows Mr. Christian, while performing his cash box duties, took one cash box containing 
approximately $2,248.00, and threw it in a trash can, rather than handing it to the other casino 
employee with whom he was working.  
 
Chair Sizemore asked if Mr. Christian was present. He was not.  

Commissioner Patterson moved to revoke the Class III employee certification for JD 
Christian. 
Commissioner Levy seconded the motion.  
The motion passed 4:0  
Commissioner Stearns was not present for the vote.  
 
De Doan, Public Card Room Employee License Revocation. Mr. Doan committed numerous 
statutory and rule violations while working at Macau Casino, including collecting money owed 
from illegal loans, assisting with illegal sports bookmaking, and illegal sale/distribution of drugs 
at the casino.  



4 
 

 
Chair Sizemore asked if Mr. De Doan was present. He was not.  

Commissioner Levy moved to revoke the public card room employee license certification for 
Mr. De Doan. 
Commissioner Patterson seconded the motion.  
The motion passed 4:0  
Commissioner Stearns was not present for the vote.  
 
Tien Le, Public Card Room Employee License Revocation. Ms. Le committed numerous 
statutory and rule violations while working at Macau Casino, including collecting money owed 
from illegal loans, assisting with money laundering activities, and a check-kiting scheme where 
she wrote and cashed 96 personal checks, totaling $1,354,000.00. 
 
Chair Sizemore asked if Ms. Tien Le was present. She was not.  

Commissioner Patterson moved to revoke the public card room employee license certification 
for Ms. Le. 
Commissioner Levy seconded the motion.  
The motion passed 4:0  
Commissioner Stearns was not present for the vote. 
 
Justin Moffett, Class III Employee Certification Revocation. Mr. Justin Moffett assisted another 
employee at Little Creek Casino, Mr. Victor Moffett, in stealing an HVAC unit from the casino. 
Mr. Justin Moffett was terminated on October 31, 2018.  
 
Chair Sizemore asked if Mr. Moffett was present. He was not.  

Commissioner Levy moved to revoke the Class III employee certification for Mr. Justin 
Moffett. 
Commissioner Troyer seconded the motion.  
The motion passed 4:0  
Commissioner Stearns was not present for the vote. 
 
Victor Moffett, Class III Employee Certification Revocation. Mr. Victor Moffett assisted 
another employee at Little Creek Casino, Mr. Justin Moffett, in stealing an HVAC unit from the 
casino. Mr. Moffett’s employment was terminated upon his resignation on October 15, 2018. 
 
Chair Sizemore asked if Mr. Moffett was present. He was not.  

Commissioner Levy moved to revoke the Class III employee certification for Mr. Victor 
Moffett. 
Commissioner Troyer seconded the motion.  
The motion passed 4:0 
Commissioner Stearns was not present for the vote.  
 
Lam Nguyen, Public Card Room Employee License Revocation. Mr. Nguyen committed 
numerous statutory and rule violations while working at Macau Casino, including collecting 



5 
 

money owed from illegal loans, assisting with illegal sports bookmaking, and assisting with 
money laundering activities. 
 
Chair Sizemore asked if Mr. Nguyen was present. He was not.  
 
Commissioner Levy moved to revoke the public card room employee license certification for 
Mr. Lam Nguyen. 
Commissioner Troyer seconded the motion.  
The motion passed 4:0 
Commissioner Stearns was not present for the vote.  
 
Amy Pham, Public Card Room Employee License Revocation. Ms. Pham committed numerous 
statutory and rule violations while working at Macau Casino, including collecting money owed 
from illegal loans and assisting with money laundering activities. 
 
Chair Sizemore asked if Ms. Pham was present. She was not.  

Commissioner Levy moved to revoke the public card room employee license certification for 
Ms. Amy Pham. 
Commissioner Troyer seconded the motion.  
The motion passed 4:0 
Commissioner Stearns was not present for the vote.  

Michael Yenglin, Public Card Room Employee License Revocation. Mr. Yenglin first received 
his gambling license on November 1, 2018, after submitting his application on October 30, 2018. 
Mr. Yenglin’s gambling license application requires him to disclose all possible criminal history. 
The gambling license application also requires a signature indicating that all information is 
submitted under penalty of perjury. Mr. Yenglin did not disclose he was charged with Battery, 
involving the physical harm to an individual, on February 16, 2016, in Las Vegas, Nevada. Mr. 
Yenglin then failed to appear in court on April 5, 2016, and a warrant was issued for his arrest. 
The case is still pending, and the warrant is still outstanding. When Mr. Yenglin submitted his 
gambling license application, he chose not to disclose the above pending charge or warrant.  

Chair Sizemore asked if Mr. Yenglin was present. He was not.  

Commissioner Levy moved to revoke the public card room employee license certification for 
Mr. Yenglin. 
Commissioner Troyer seconded the motion.  
The motion passed 4:0 
Commissioner Stearns was not present for the vote. 
 
Tab 5 
Petition for Review – Christopher R. Dotson 
 
Mr. Chris Dotson represented himself. Assistant Attorney General (AAG) Chad Standifer 
represented Gambling Commission staff. 

Mr. Chris Dotson introduced himself to the commission. He stated that on January 2018, he was 
involved in a situation at Chips and Palace Casino, which ultimately led to his arrest and license 



6 
 

revocation. He said there was a lot of inconsistencies. He explained that his first license renewal 
in 2018 was manually blocked online, and when he went to the Gaming Commission, he said 
they had no answer as to why, but they could just say that it was manually blocked, and they 
don't know why. He notes, “Moving forward from that, I turned in my appeals multiple times 
and was granted a hearing and we pushed it out from the initial incident in January.” 
 
Mr. Dotson also indicated that he could not call-in for the prehearing conference because he had 
his two children with him that morning.  When questioned by Commissioner Patterson why he 
couldn’t have called in to let the ALJ know he was unavailable and asked for the prehearing to 
be reset, Mr. Dotson stated having his children was unexpected but he could have probably 
handled it differently. 
 
AAG Standifer presented Commission staff’s position for default.  He stated that the issue before 
the Commissioners is not about the merits of the case at all.  Instead, it is solely whether or not a 
default order issued by Administrative Law Judge TJ Martin was proper and Mr. Dotson has 
sought review of that order. Mr. Dotson failed to meet his burden of showing good cause for 
failing to appear at the status conference below. AAG Standifer presented the procedural history 
of the case, including charges being issued and a hearing scheduled for December of 2018, and a 
status conference scheduled one week before that hearing. All parties were required to appear at 
the status conference. Mr. Dotson did not appear for that conference, a default order was issued 
and Mr. Dotson had seven days to petition ALJ Martin to vacate the default.  Mr. Dotson did not 
file his petition by the deadline and the issue is now before the Commissioners for final review.  
Commissioners voted unanimously to grant a public card room employee’s petition for review 
and the ALJ’s default order was not adopted. The case will be returned to the Office of 
Administrative Hearings and a new hearing date will be set. 
 
Tab 8 
2019 Legislative Update 
 
LLM Considine presented the material for this tab. He reviewed “Bills Still Alive” and “Bills 
That the Agency is supporting”. SHB 1302 was passed out of the House 98-0 and has a hearing 
in the Senate Labor and Commerce Committee on March 18, 2019. ESHB 1880 passed out of 
the House 98-0 and will have a hearing in the Senate Labor and Commerce Committee on March 
25, 2019. SHB 1919 passed out of the House and had a hearing the morning of the Commission 
meeting.  It was a good hearing and the bill should pass out of committee.  SHB 1356 passed out 
of the House and is scheduled for a hearing in the Senate Law and Justice Committee on March 
19, 2019. HB 1159 did not make it out of the House and is dead for this session.  We will look to 
work on it next session. 

LLM Considine highlighted the Sports Gambling Bill, HB 1975, authorizing sports wagering 
subject to the terms of tribal-state gaming compacts. The bill did not make it out of the House 
Appropriations Committee, and is dead for this session. Additionally, SB 5965, relating to the 
sports wagering act, did not make it out of the Senate Ways and Means Committee, and is also 
dead for this session. 
 
LLM Considine informed the Commissioners that staff received a request from the Senate 
Financial Institutions, Economic Development, and Trade Committee to participate in a work 



7 
 

session to discuss the 9th Circuit’s Kater v. Churchill Downs decision.  We have been asked to 
brief the committee on the case, including discussing the legal implications of the case.  After 
our presentation, we’ve been told that Big Fish Games, Inc. would give a presentation. 
Commissioners discussed the agency’s participation in the work session, including staff’s 
concerns that participation is problematic because cases deciding legal issues related to online 
social casinos are still pending in federal court and the Commissioners reviewed this issue in the 
summer/fall 2018 and decided to not take a position at this time.  The Commissioners voted for 
the agency to not participate in the work session and Chair Sizemore would deliver that position 
in a written communication to Senator Mullet, Chair of the Senate Committee holding the work 
session. 

LLM Considine informed the Commissioners that the Senate unanimously voted to confirm 
Commissioner Patterson to the Commission on February 26, 2019 and congratulated 
Commissioner Patterson on her appointment.  LLM Considine then explained that the Senate is 
still working through a backlog of confirmations from the 2018 session, and last year, due to the 
backlog, looked to only confirm the Commission’s Chair and Vice Chair.  However, it looks like 
the Senate will get through the original list of confirmations during the 2019 session and LLM 
Considine will work with Senate staff to determine if Commissioners Levy, Stearns, and Troyer 
can be confirmed during the 2020 session. 
 
Public Comment 

Dolores Chiechi, Executive Director of the Recreational Gaming Association thanked the 
Commission for the opportunity to speak. She referred to the commission’s goals as listed in the 
strategic plan: problem gambling and legislative relations.  Referring to RCW 9.46.090 relating 
to reports, noting she’s raised this issue before, she read an excerpt “the Gambling Commission 
may make recommendations to the Legislature as to gambling activity that ought to be permitted, 
gambling activity that ought to be prohibited, the types of licenses and permits that ought to be 
required, the type and amount of tax”, etcetera. She referred again to the strategic plan: 
“Maintaining public confidence by anticipating and responding to the evolving gambling 
industry and strengthen legislative relationships”. She mentioned sports betting, loot boxes, and 
skin's gambling as examples. She stated that the Gambling Commission was created to be an 
apolitical body that shouldn't be influenced by politics.  
 
She highlighted the sports wagering legislation [House Bill 1975] and the Commission’s 
testimony that did not include any mention that problem gambling should be part of that 
conversation. Instead the testimony was "We'll be happy to regulate, we'll be happy to license." 
She noted that the bill is exclusively for tribal casinos and could not be amended to include 
anyone else. She went on to say that the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act (IGRA) was passed that 
requires the state to negotiate with tribal governments for activities that are authorized for any 
play for any purpose. However, now sovereign nations are asking the legislature to approve an 
activity and allow only them to participate in it. Ms. Chiechi stated that that was concerning to 
her members. She also expressed concern that there was no mention that IGRA prohibits the 
state from taxing and or charging fees to tribal governments. She said, “If the legislature was to 
pass sports wagering for tribes only, and it comes with no appropriation and we understand 
there's over $1 million appropriation that came out of the fiscal note, who would end up paying 
those costs? Would it be the licensees who don't get to offer the activity”? She asked that the 



8 
 

Commission consider, now that the policy of sports wagering has been raised, that the Gambling 
Commission raise the idea that it shouldn't be an exclusive activity only for tribes. “In testimony, 
tribes talked about their 20 years of experience, and being highly regulated and licensed with 
oversight. She said, “Our industry has those same regulations. While, we don't have a Tribal 
Gaming Agency on site 24/7, we obviously want to do the right thing and protect the public by 
keeping gambling legal and honest. So we are suggesting we have the ability to be licensed, we 
have the ability to be regulated, the bankroll requirements, security and surveillance, and the 20 
years of experience,” She asked the agency to take a more proactive position to say, "Now that 
the issue has been broached on sports wagering, we believe that there's more than tribal nations 
that could keep the game legal and honest, and it could be licensed and regulated in other 
facilities where minors are not allowed, where we have the bankroll and the security and 
surveillance." 
 
She continued, “Understanding all of this, we understand politics plays a huge role in this 
conversation. Otherwise, this agency might also be recommending to the legislature that they 
modernize a pull-tab game that is wrought with corruption, and theft, and leakage, and things 
that this agency is overlooking. Because we're not going to go there, because politically it's not 
okay to do that. So, I'm just imploring you. You've been directed by the legislature, it seems that 
if they're asking you to recommend to them, what gambling activity ought to be permitted and 
where it should be authorized, perhaps you should take a bit more of a strong approach to not be 
so political. Thank you for your attention.” 
  
Other Business/General Discussion/Public Comment 
 
Chair Sizemore called for any further comment. There were no further comments.  
The next commission meeting will be on April 11th at the Great Wolf Lodge Grand Mound 
Washington.  
 
Meeting adjourned at 2:45 p.m. 











































ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE ACT 
REFRESHER

Suzanne Becker, AAG



ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE ACT 
(APA)

• Located at Chapter 34.05 RCW

• Rulemaking Procedures

• Adjudication Procedures (License Enforcement Cases)

• Petition for Adoption, Amendment or Repeal of Agency Rule

• Public Access to Agency Rules



RULE MAKING PROCEDURES

In summary





RULE MAKING: A SHORT SUMMARY

• CR-101

• No text needed

• Must be filed 30 days before CR102

• CR-102

• Text in rule format

• Must be filed 20 days before hearing

• Hearing/Public Comment

• CR-103

• Must be filed 31 days before rule becomes effective



REASONS A COURT MAY FIND A 
COMMISSION RULE INVALID

• RCW 34.05.570(2)(c)

• The rule violates constitutional provisions; 

• The rule exceeds the statutory authority of the agency;

• The rule was adopted without compliance with statutory rule-making procedures; or

• The rule is arbitrary and capricious.



ADJUDICATIVE PROCEEDINGS

The Details



APA GOVERNS GAMBLING COMMISSION 
ADJUDICATIVE PROCEEDINGS

• Adjudicative proceedings are an opportunity for an applicant, licensee or 
permittee to contest:

• A decision to deny an applicant a license or permit

• A decision to issues administrative charges to suspend or revoke a current license or 
permit

• A decision to deny approval of a pull tab dispenser.

WAC 230-17-001



OVERVIEW OF ADJUDICATIVE 
PROCEEDINGS

Investigation (Staff)

Issue Administrative Charges (Staff)

Respondent Defaults

Final Order 

Commission Hears Issue

Respondent Requests 
Hearing

Case Sent to OAH

Prehearing Conference

HEARING

Initial Order (OAH Hearing Officer)

Petition for Review

Judicial Review (Superior Court)Petition for Reconsideration



DEFAULT CASES: THE BASICS

• Administrative Charges are issued by Commission staff.

• Applicants, Licensees and Permittees must request a hearing within: 

• Twenty-three days after the administrative charges are sent regular mail;

• Twenty days after the administrative charges are received by certified mail; or

• Twenty days after the administrative charges are personally served.

• WAC 230-17-101; RCW  34.05.413.

• If no hearing is requested, then the Commission may issue a Final Order.  
RCW 34.05.440



TYPICAL DEFAULT CASE

Investigation (Staff)

Issue Administrative Charges (Staff)

Respondent Defaults

Final Order 

Commission Hears Issue

Respondent Requests 
Hearing

Case Sent to OAH

Prehearing Conference

HEARING

Initial Order (OAH Hearing Officer)

Petition for Review

Judicial Review (Superior Court)Petition for Reconsideration



ADJUDICATIVE CASES: THE BASICS

• Administrative Charges are issued.

• Applicants, Licensees and Permittees must request a hearing within: 

• Twenty-three days after the administrative charges are sent regular mail;

• Twenty days after the administrative charges are received by certified mail; or

• Twenty days after the administrative charges are personally served.

• WAC 230-17-101; RCW  34.05.413.

• Once an Applicant, Licensee or Permittee requests a hearing, the case is sent 
to the Office of Administrative Hearings (OAH).



TYPICAL ADJUDICATIVE HEARING CASE

Investigation (Staff)

Issue Administrative Charges (Staff)

Respondent Defaults

Final Order 

Commission Hears Issue

Respondent Requests 
Hearing

Case Sent to OAH

Prehearing Conference

HEARING

Initial Order (OAH Hearing Officer)

Petition for Review

Judicial Review (Superior Court)Petition for Reconsideration



OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS

• By contract with the Gambling Commission, OAH presides over enforcement 
cases for the Commission.  

• The OAH hearings officer:

• Conducts a prehearing conference which schedules dates for the litigation, including 
any discovery cutoff dates, motion deadlines, and the hearing date

• Decides any motions filed by the parties

• Holds any status conferences requested by the parties

• Presides over the hearing, including ruling on what evidence is admissible

• Issues an Initial Order



INITIAL ORDER

• Initial Orders must include:

• A statement of findings and conclusions, and the reasons and basis therefor, on all the 
material issues of fact, law, or discretion presented on the record, 

• The remedy or sanction 

• Any findings based substantially on credibility of evidence or demeanor of witnesses 

• A statement of the available procedures and time limits for seeking reconsideration 
or other administrative relief. 

• A statement of any circumstances under which the initial order, without further 
notice, may become a final order

RCW 34.05.461;  WAC 230-17-085



WHEN AN INITIAL ORDER BECOMES A 
FINAL ORDER

• Initial Orders become final unless a party files a petition for review.          
WAC 230-17-085

• A Petition for Review must be filed within twenty days of the date of service of 
the initial order.  WAC 230-17-090



TYPICAL ADJUDICATIVE HEARING CASE

Investigation (Staff)

Issue Administrative Charges (Staff)

Respondent Defaults

Final Order 

Commission Hears Issue

Respondent Requests 
Hearing

Case Sent to OAH

Prehearing Conference

HEARING

Initial Order (OAH Hearing Officer)

Petition for Review

Judicial Review (Superior Court)Petition for Reconsideration



ADJUDICATIVE HEARING CASE WITH 
PETITION FOR REVIEW

Investigation (Staff)

Issue Administrative Charges (Staff)

Respondent Defaults

Final Order 

Commission Hears Issue

Respondent Requests 
Hearing

Case Sent to OAH

Prehearing Conference

HEARING

Initial Order (OAH Hearing Officer)

Petition for Review

Judicial Review (Superior Court)Petition for Reconsideration



COMMISSION’S ROLE IN PETITION FOR 
REVIEW

• Once a Petition for Review is filed, the Commission reviews it at a regularly 
scheduled business meeting within 120 days.  WAC 230-17-090.

• The Commission can:

• Issue a Final Order, or 

• Remand the matter back to OAH for additional proceedings.



ONCE A FINAL ORDER IS ISSUED

• A party may file a petition for reconsideration within ten days of service of the 
Final Order.  WAC 230-17-140; RCW 34.05.470.

• Once a petition for reconsideration is received, the Commission may:

• Deny the petition and affirm the Final Order;

• Hear the petition, and amend the Final Order

• A petition for reconsideration does not stay the effectiveness of an order.

• The filing of a petition for reconsideration is not a prerequisite for seeking 
judicial review.



JUDICIAL REVIEW

• Judicial Review is the appeal of the Commission’s Final Order to Superior 
Court.

• An Applicant, Licensee or Permittee has thirty days to appeal a Final Order to 
Superior Court.



COMMON REASONS A COURT MAY 
OVERTURN THE COMMISSION’S FINAL 

ORDER

• The order, or the statute or rule on which the order is based, is in violation of the 
constitution;

• The order is outside the statutory authority or jurisdiction of the agency;

• The agency has engaged in unlawful procedure or decision-making process, or has 
failed to follow a prescribed procedure;

• The agency has erroneously interpreted or applied the law;

• The order is not supported by substantial evidence;

• The order is inconsistent with a rule of the agency; or

• The order is arbitrary or capricious.

RCW 34.05.570(3)



QUESTIONS?

Thank you!



Preparing the

2020 Supplemental 
Budget Request
April 11, 2019
Christopher Stanley, Chief Financial Officer



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 2

It starts with priorities…

What are your priorities?

What do you want staff to think 
about?

What are you hearing from 
stakeholders?



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 3

2018-22 Commissioner Priorities

Problem 
Gambling

Legislative 
Partnerships

Succession 
Planning

Stakeholder 
Partnerships



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 4

Over time, priorities become ideas

How do we address problem 
gambling?

How can we secure stable 
funding for the agency?

What initiatives will strengthen 
ties with stakeholders and the 
Legislature?



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 5

Ideas become requests

What is the problem we are 
trying to solve?

What compelling data supports 
our request?

Are there external entities that 
will support our requests?



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 6

Requests become a funded reality

What does it take to implement the 
request?

How is the request going to be 
funded?

Do we need more staff? Do we have 
the right tools to do the job? Do we 
need different tools?



Questions?
Christopher Stanley
Chief Financial Officer
christopher.stanley@wsgc.wa.gov



 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 
 
April 4, 2019 
 
 
TO:          COMMISSIONERS    EX OFFICIO MEMBERS  
         Bud Sizemore, Chair     Senator Steve Conway  
  Julia Patterson, Vice-Chair    Representative Derek Stanford 
   Christopher Stearns    Representative Brandon Vick 
   Ed Troyer 
   Alicia Levy     
      
FROM:        Brian J. Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager  
   Chris Stanley, Chief Financial Officer 
 
SUBJECT:  LEGISLATIVE UPDATE   
 
The following legislative cutoffs will occur prior to our April Commission Meeting: 

• Wednesday, April 3, 2019 - Policy committee cutoff – opposite house; and 
• Tuesday, April 9, 2019 - Fiscal committee cutoff – opposite house. 

 
The last two legislative cutoffs will occur after April Commission Meeting: 

• Wednesday, April 17, 2019 - Opposite house cutoff; and 
• Sunday, April 28, 2019 – Sine Die. 

 
Below is a summary of noteworthy bills that were alive during our March Commission Meeting, 
including our agency request bills and bills we are supporting. 
 
Agency Request Legislation 
 

1. SHB 1302, Gambling Self Exclusion  
SHB 1302 was heard in the Senate Labor and Commerce Committee on March 19, 2019 and 
passed out of committee on March 20, 2019.  It is currently in the Senate Rules Committee and 
we are optimistic that it will be passed out of the Senate before cutoff. 

 
Bills Supported by the Commission 
 

2. HB 1880, Creating a joint legislative task force on problem gambling 
ESHB 1880 received a hearing in the Senate Labor and Commerce Committee on March 25, 
2019.  It should be passed out of committee before the April 3rd cutoff. 
 
 



Legislative Memorandum to Commissioners 
April 2, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 
Bills Supported by the Commission (cont.) 

 
3. HB 1919, Preventing and responding to animal abuse & HB 1929, Restricting animal 

fighting paraphernalia 
SHB 1919 had a hearing in the Senate Law and Justice Committee on March 14, 2019 and it was 
passed out of committee with a technical fix amendment on March 21, 2019.  The Senate then 
passed it on March 29, 2019 by a 44-2-3 vote.  The amended bill will need to be approved by the 
House and then onto the Governor for his signature. 
 

4. HB 1356, Concerning privileged communication with peer support group counselors 
SHB 1356 had a hearing in the Senate Law and Justice Committee on March 19, 2019 and was 
passed out of committee on March 21, 2019.  It is currently in the Senate Rules Committee and 
we are optimistic that it will be passed out of the Senate before cutoff. 

 
5. HB 1064, Concerning law enforcement 

Representative Goodman’s HB 1064 is an amendment to I-940.  The bill was passed by the 
Legislature, signed by the Governor, and became effective on February 4, 2019. 
 

6. HB 1159, Changing the definition of theft 
HB 1159 did not make it out of the House and is dead for this session. 
 

Sports Gambling Bills 
 

7. HB 1975, Authorizing sports wagering subject to the terms of tribal-state gaming 
compacts.  
The bill did not make it out of the House Appropriations Committee and is dead for this session. 

 
8. SB 5965, Relating to the sports wagering act 

SB 5965 is a title-only bill that did not make it out of the Senate Ways and Means Committee 
and is dead for this session. 

 
Bills with Direct Gambling Industry Impacts 
 

9. HB 1343 and SB 5129, Increasing revenues for the support of state government 
These are OFM request bills that impose a capital gains tax and increase business and occupation 
(B&O) tax rate from 1.5 percent to 2.5 percent for games of chance. See budget discussion 
below. 
 

Law Enforcement Bills 
 

10. HB 1253, Concerning the timeline for commencing basic law enforcement training 
HB 1253 did not make it out of the House Appropriations Committee and is dead for this 
session.  However, there is money in the Senate and House operating budgets for more CJTC 
classes. 
 

 
 



Legislative Memorandum to Commissioners 
April 2, 2019 
Page 3 
 
 
Operating Budget 
 

11. HB 1109 and SB 5153, operating appropriations 
House Chair Proposal 
Substitute House Bill 1302 is assumed to pass, and in fact, is likely to pass given the fact that it’s 
already passed the House and is sitting in the Senate Rules Committee waiting to be pulled to a 
vote on the floor.  

• Lottery was appropriated $105k of its operating account funds to implement the bill; and  
• WSGC was appropriated $49k of our operating account funds to implement the bill. 

 
WSGC was appropriated $250k of our operating account funds to conduct a feasibility study to 
replace main business database and case system. This matches the Governor’s budget proposal, 
but is less than the $1.5M we had requested to replace the systems. 
 
Senate Chair Proposal 
Much like the House proposal, the self-exclusion bill is assumed to pass and therefore, funded in 
the budget. There was no funding included for a feasibility study, although the agency is still 
required to do one under additional language included in the back of the budget.  This does not 
cause concern since the agency’s primary fund source is non-appropriated 

 
Public Records Act and State Government Bills 
 

12. HB 1537, Sunshine committee recommendations; and HB 1667, Concerning public records 
request administration 
HB 1537 and HB 1667 both had hearings and were passed out of the Senate Government, Tribal 
Relations, and Elections Committee.  HB 1539 is currently in the Senate Rules Committee and 
HB 1667 is currently in the Senate Ways and Means Committee. 
 

13. HB 1071, Protecting personal information and SB 5662, Cloud computing solutions 
SHB 1071 was heard and passed by the by the Senate Environment, Energy, and Technology 
Committee.  It is now in the Senate Ways and Means Committee. E2SSB 5662 was heard and 
passed by the House Innovation, Technology, and Economic Development Committee.  It is 
currently in the House Appropriations Committee. 
 

Work Sessions 
 

14. Senate Work Sessions 
The Senate had a few work sessions since our last Commission Meeting.  The Senate Labor and 
Commerce Committee had work session, in conjunction with a hearing on HB 1880, where I 
provided a brief overview of our Problem Gambling study and the report we submitted to the 
Legislature.  Additionally, the Committee had a work session where committee staff provided an 
overview of Kater v. Churchill Downs and updates about pending litigation related to the 9th 
Circuit’s decision.  A certified problem gambling counselor also presented an overview about 
problem gambling and how online gambling could impact the disorder.  We did not participate in 
either presentation. 
 

 



Legislative Memorandum to Commissioners 
April 2, 2019 
Page 4 
 
 
Work Sessions (cont.) 

 
Additionally, the Senate Financial Institutions, Economic Development, and Trade Committee 
held a work session to discuss social online casinos. At our March 2019 Commission meeting, 
you voted that the agency would not participate in the work session for the reasons we discussed 
at the Commission Meeting. Originally, Big Fish Games, Inc. was to give a presentation.  
However, they did not present.  Instead, a representative from Double Down, Interactive, a 
Seattle company that appeared before you at our July 2018 Commission meeting supporting Big 
Fish, Inc.’s petition, and a representative from the International Social Gaming Association, 
whose members include Scientific Games, IGT, Big Fish, Aristocrat, and other companies who 
offer mobile/online casino-style games, gave a presentation about social games like Candy Crush 
and provided a little information about social online casinos. 
 
 
 
 


	April Commission Packet
	Agenda
	Tab 1 minutes
	Tab 1 Licenses
	Tab 2 APA refresher
	Tab 4 2020 Supplemental Budget Request
	Tab 5 Legislative Update



